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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE AUGUST 20, 1974 

OFFICE OF THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS SECRETARY 

10:04 A.M. EDT 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

REMARKS OF THE PRESIDENT 
UPON HIS ANNOUNCING 

NELSON ROCKEFELLER 
AS 

VICE PRESIDENT-DESIGNATE 

THE OVAL OFFICE 

Mr. Speaker, Members of the leadership of the 
House and Senate, members of the Cabinet: 

After a great deal of soul searching, after 
considering the advice of Members of the Congress, Republicans 
as well as the Democratic leadership, after consulting with 
many, many people within the Republican Party, and without, 
I have made a decision which I would now like to announce to 
the American people. 

This was a difficult decision, but the man who· 
I am selecting as nominee for Vice President is a person 
whose long record of accomplishment in the Government and 
outside is well-known. He comes from a family that has 
long been associated with the building of a better America. 
It is a family that has contributed significantly to many 
accomplishments, both at home and abroad, for the American 
people. 

His achievements in Government are well, well­
known. He served in the Department of State under former 
President Franklin Delano Roosevelt. He served under the 
Presidency of Harry Truman. He served in the Department of 
HEW under President Eisenhower. 

He has served as Governor of the great Empire 
State, the State of New York, for 15 years, the longest 
period of time in the history of the State of New York. 
He is known across the land as a person dedicated to the 
free enterprise system, a person who is recognized abroad 
for his talents, for his dedication to making this a peaceful 
world. 
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It was a tough call for a tough job. The number 
of people who were considered by me in the process were all 
men and women of great quality. They came from those sug­
gested to me who serve in the Congress, the Senate and the 
House of Representatives. 

The names included individuals who had served their 
respective states with great credit. The names included 
individuals who were in Government, but not in Washington. 
The names included individuals who were not connected with 
Government. 

But after a long and very thoughtful process, I have 
made the choice and that choice is Nelson Rockefeller of New 
York State. It is my honor and privilege to introduce to 
you a good partner for me and I think a good partner for 
our country and the world. 

So I announce officially that I will send the name 
of Nelson Rockefeller to the Congress of the United States 
for confirmation. 

END CAT 10:09 EDT) 



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE AUGUST 20, 1974 

OFFICE OF THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS SECRETARY 

10:20 A.M. EDT 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

REMARKS OF THE PRESIDENT 
UPON lN'tllODUCTION OF 

GOVERNOR NELSON ROCKEFELLER 
AS VICE PRESIDENT-DESIGNATE 

AND 
PRESS CONFERENCE 

OF 
GOVERNOR NELSON ROCKEFELLER 
VICE PRESIDENT-DESIGNATE 

THE BRIEFING ROOM 

THE PRESIDENT: Good morning. 

I think all of you have probably heard by now 
that my nominee for Vice President is Governor 
Rockefeller. I told him I was going to bring him over 
to all of my friends to have some discussion and so if you 
would like, I just want to reiterate the fact that I stated, 
that after I looked at all of the choices, and they were 
difficult; after I looked at all of the people, there 
were many, but the one who in good judgment under all of 
the circumstances was Nelson Rockefeller. 

I think he will make a great teammate. I think 
he will be good for the country, I think he will be good 
for the world, and I am looking forward to working with him. 

So, Nelson. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Thank you. 

Needless to say, ladies and gentlemen, I am 
deeply honored and should I be confirmed by the Congress, I 
will look forward to the privilege and honor of serving 
the President of the United States and, as I said in the 
other room, through him all of the people of this great 
country. 

I am fully cognizant of the fact that the 
responsibilities of the Vice President are to preside 
over the Senate of the United States and to otherwise 
simply carry out any assignment that he or she may receive 
from the President. 
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I will look forward to that opportunity of 
se:rving him in any way that can be useful to him, and I 
think and feel very strongly that already his own dedication 
and openness has reawakened hope and faith and that under 
his leadership we, as a people, and we, as a Nation, have 
the capacity, the will and the ability to face the tough 
realities and overcome them that exist in our country and 
in the world today. I am optimistic about the long-term 
future. 

Q Governor, do you have any understanding at 
all with President Ford on what specifically you will do 
as Vice President? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Nothing in detail. There 
has been a discussion on that subject, but he said nothing 
today about it. 

Q Governor, you have turned down this job so many 
times since 1960, why did you accept it now? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, let's not exaggerate 
the number of times -- twice (Laughter). But two different 
factors: One, the situation that exists in our country and 
the world, a situation resulting from an accelerated change, 
tremendously difficult and serious problems, as the 
President pointed out in his address to the Congress, very 
difficult problems that have to be faced and faced realistically. 
And so the solution of them is going to involve and require 
all the people of this country, their dedication to the 
common interest~ so that this situation puts an entirely 
different light on the problem. 

I just would say also I have been privileged to 
serve my country and State of New York, so that I am in a 
position of relaxed desire to be helpful to this Nation 
in any way I can. 

Q Governor, hav.e you discussed with the 
President the possibility of campaigning for the Republicans 
this fall? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Yes, sir. 

Q Will you? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I am delighted. 

Q Governor, if you are confirmed, do you 
believe that your role as Vice President will be different 
than other Vice Presidents had in the past? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I have known all the Vice 
Presidents since Henry Wallace, who was a very good friend 
of mine, and the role of a Vice President totally depends 
on the President. If the President wants to use him, 
wonderful. If he doesn't, fine. 

MORE 
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Q Governor, what will you do about your financial 
assets to meet the requirements of the Vice Presidency? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I will just conform to the 
law. 

Q Well, specifically? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I assume that it is putting 
them into trust. 

Q Is that what you plan to do? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: To tell you the honest 
truth, this thing has moved rather rapidly, so I haven't 
really studied the details, but I will now talk to the 
lawyers and see what is appropriate. 

Q Would you tell us when you were first contacted 
by President Ford about the nomination? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: He first talked to me on 
Saturday afternoon and then made a final decision which 
I got word about last night. 

Q Governor, are you prepared to detail your 
personal finances for Congress, including your tax returns, 
make those public? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I am glad to do whatever 
the Congress asks me and to conform to the law in every 
respect. 

Q What is your net worth now? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: You are not a Member of the 
Congress. 

Q Governor, did you talk to the President 
about his plans for 1976? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: No, sir. 

Q What is your hope and expectation? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: That he would run for 
re-election. 

Q You want him to run for that job, do you? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I think he has already --
as I said before -- I think he has already, by his dedication 
and his openness, that he has recreated, reawakened a sense 
of faith and hope, not only in this country but in the 
world, and I think it is tremendously important for us. 

MORE 
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Q Governor, do you plan to be his running-
mate in 1976. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: 
honest truth, I just got through 
haven't even been confirmed, and 
road ahead of me. 

Well, to tell you the 
this, got nominated, I 
you are way down the 

Q What about running for President again? 
Let's go further down the road. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: That is too far. All of 
that stuff is too far. 

Q You are not ruling that out? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: I am just going to wait 
and see if I get confirmed. 

Q Governor, will you wait on confirmation 
before you campaign for any Republican candidates? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, I have to say that 
I was asked to fulfill an engagement tomorrow night 
that was an invitation to meet the President of the 
United States, a fund-raising meeting -- no, it was to 
meet Vice President Ford. 

That is the way the invitation reads, in Providence, 
Rhode Island, and I was a substitute. Unless I get any 
comment to the contrary, I guess I will go. 

Q Governor, why is your wife not present for 
this historic day? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Because until 9 o'clock 
last night there was no suggestion that she be present. 
This was billed as a Cabinet and leadership meeting. And 
when I finally got her off the beach at a picnic in Seal 
Harbor, the prospects of her getting here, and for those 
ladies, the prospects of, you know, getting properly 
presentable to this extremely impressive gathering, just 
seemed impossible. (Laughter) 

Q Governor Rockefeller, could you give us an 
estimate of about how much you are worth? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, I would think that 
if that subject is to be discussed, it would be before the 
committee of the Congress. 

MORE 
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Q It is a natural question. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: That is right, and I have been 
asked it by happenstance before. (Laughter.) But I will do 
two things. I will conform totally to whatever the law requires, 
and secondly, I will answer any questions that the Members 
of Congress and the committees feel is important. 

Q Governor, do you think it is a good idea to 
have full disclosure of finances by a candidate? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, that is an interesting 
question. I haven•t really given it too much consideration, as I 
really just got to be where I am now, which is here before you, 
not even confirmed, see. So I will be prepared to do whatever 
I am asked by the Congress. 

Q Governor, you just lauded the President's open-
ness. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Yes, sir. 

Q You seem to be a little less than open with us. 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, you are not the committee 
of Congress. I haven't been confirmed and I haven't gone before 
the committee, and my understanding is that protocol says that 
you don't discuss matters that are going to be taken up by a 
committee before you get to the hearings. 

Q Do you doubt that you will be confirmed? 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Well, I would never take any­
thing for granted in life, particularly action of this kind. 

It has been a pleasure. I may see you again. 

THE PRESS: Thank you, Governor. 

END (10:30 A.M. EDT) 
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OFFICE OF THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS SECRETARY 

2:10 P.M. EDT 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

PRESS CONFERENCE 
OF 

ROBERT HARTMANN 
COUNSELLOR TO THE PRESIDENT 

THE BRIEFING ROOM 

MR. TER HORST: Here, live and in person, is 
Counsellor Robert Hartmann to answer your questions on the 
President's selection of his Vice Presidential nominee. Bob? 

MR. HARTMANN: Thank you, Jerry. As you can see, 
I got myself a terHorst pipe. (Laughter.) 

It is good to be back here in the press room. Though 
I never worked in the press room, it is still good to be back 
and find some people who were here when I last covered the 
White House about ten years ago; something like that. 

I understand there is some interest in the manner or 
the mechanism by which the President made his decision and I 
should say at the outset that I am not going to attempt to 
explore the President's mind or tell you what I think went on 
there because I don't know, nor does anybody else, except him, 
and you will in due course have an opportunity to ask that 
yourself of the President. 

But I will try and give you as best I can the things 
that went on physically by way of supporting him with staff 
work and helping him in reaching his decision. 

Maybe it would be well if I tried to anticipate some 
of your questions although I am sure I can't anticipate all of 
them, but I will try to answer a few of the more obvious ones 
in the beginning. 

The first question was when did he reach his 
decision? The answer to that is that he talked to Governor 
Rockefeller by telephone on Saturday -- the exact time, I am 
not sure, but perhaps the Governor told you that -- and asked 
numerous questions which might very well have aroused the 
Governor's9.lspicions that he was one of the candidates, one of 
the finalists. He did not flatly tell him nor had he flatly 
made up his mind at the time nor did he tell the Governor that 
he was asking similar questions of other people, but it certainly 
was enough to make the Governor, I am sure, feel that he was in 
the running. 

MORE 
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The actual decision in his mind, he informed me, 
was made late last night after he had retired upstairs in 
the Residence. 

Q What do you mean 11 late 11 ? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, between the time he went 
upstairs and the time he went to sleep. You can find out what 
the time was he went upstairs. I don't know what time he went 
to sleep. 

Q Governor Rockefeller said he got a call last 
night about 9:00 o'clock, wasn't it? 

MR. HARTMANN: That is correct. He got a call 
from General Haig last night. He did not get another call 
from the President. The call from General Haig was simply 
to tell him to get down here by a certain time this morning. 

Q You mean he wasn't told last night why to get 
here? 

MR. HARTMANN: He probably was told by General Haig. 

Q We would like to clear that up, because we 
were told it was a personal call. We would like to know 
exactly what Haig told him. 

Q Senator Scott said that the President had 
called him at 9:00 o'clock. He said that in the car. 

MR. HARTMANN: Senator Scott said the President 
called Governor Rockefeller at 9:00 o'clock? 

Q That is what he said. 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, I wonvt argue with him. Those 
questions the Press Secretary will probably be able to look 
up for you. I can only speak to what I know. 

Q Is it correct, then, that the decision was 
made by the President still before 9:00 o'clock last night, 
if that was the time Haig called Rockefeller and informed him? 

MR. HARTMANN: It must have been. I don't know what 
the time was that Haig called. 

Q Well, Rocky says at 9:00. What we want to 
know is was he told at that time? 

MR. HARTMANN: Why didntt you ask Rocky when you had 
the chance? 

MORE 
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Q Because we have been told all day that you were 
going to brief. 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, mind you I am going to go 
further back into the process than this. I wasn't the one 
told to call the Governor so I don't know the exact time 
sequence. 

The question would undoubtedly be asked whether 
the FBI was asked to make a check of the Governor or other 
potential nominees. The answer to that is, yes. The Director 
of the FBI was in last Friday to see the President and alone 
with the President the President gave him three names to report 
back if there was any derogatory material about those three 
names. 

This was not, at that point, the full list of 
possibilities, but they were three of the names on his final 
list of possibilities that were not elected Members of the 
Congress. 

Q What was the time of that meeting; do you have 
it? 

MR. HARTMANN: That will show on the schedule, I 
believe. 

Q Was Rockefeller on that list? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes. 

Q Who else? 

MR. HARTMANN: The President would rather let you 
guess. 

Q You say they are not elected Members of the 
Congress? 

MR. HARTMANN: They were not elected Members of 
the Congress. The President felt to ask the FBI to inquire 
around among associates and so forth of an elected Member of 
Congress, providing that person was not going to be his 
nominee for sure, would be a disservice to the Legislative 
branch. 

Q Can we assume that George Bush's name was on 
the list? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes, you can assume it. I am not 
going to confirm it. 

Q I have talked to friends of Don Rumsfeld who 
have said they were called by the FBI over the weekend. 

MORE 
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MR. HARTMANN: You can put together all the pieces 
you want, but the President does not wish to specify -- since 
you now know whom he selected, he doesn't want to be too 
specific about who was on the semifinals and the finals and 
all of that. 

Q Bob, before we leave that, he felt it was 
not necessary to have the FBI check into possibly derogatory 
information on those Members of Congress who were on the list? 

MR. HARTMANN: No. Had he wound up with an elected 
Member of the Congress, a Senator or a Member of the House as 
his final choice, there would of course have been some kind of a 
check, but to do this to people who were not going to be his 
final choice at a point when he didn't know for sure, would 
have been a disservice to them and probably would have cut 
across the bounds of separation of powers. 

Q Bob, I am still not clear. These three then were 
not his final three? He did not narrow the list down to three? 

MR. HARTMANN: No. 

Q There were more on this list? 

MR. HARTMANN: There were in the neighborhood of 
half a dozen at that point. 

Q As of last Friday, still half a dozen? 

MR. HARTMANN: As of the time he talked to the 
Director of the FBI. 

Q If he had decided to name a Member of the Congress 
he would have had that one investigated by the FBI? 

MR. HARTMANN: He would have added that one, yes. 

Q Then by the process of deduction, you would 
have three Members of Congress on that final list, I would 
assume, from what you said about the FBI check. Three elected 
officials? 

MR. HARTMANN: Elected people, yes. 

Q Excuse me, then, Bob; this exception was not 
just to Members of Congress but to elected officials that he 
felt it might not be quite --

MR. HARTMANN: Since I don't know what the list is, I 
am somewhat at a disadvantage in answering that question, as to 
what the larger list included, but he did give them three names 
to begin a quick check on and none of these three names were 
Members of Congress. That is the fact as I know it. 

MORE 
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Q And one of them was Rockefeller? 

MR. HARTMANN: One was Rockefeller. 

Q Bob, is this going to be a secret forever kept 
or something? 

MR. HARTMANN: No one, so far as I know, has ever 
got the story completely straight about the nomination of 
Gerald R. Ford. There has been a great many verities and 
I think it would do a disservice to those who were not 
selected. After all, this was the President's private decision 
and I didn't know myself until I met with the President first 
thing this morning who the selection was. 

MORE 
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Q Bob, when is the first time that Mr. Rocke-
feller was told by the President of the United States that 
he was the nominee? 

MR. HARTMANN: Told by the President? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HARTMANN: When he came into the White House 
this morning, came into that little office offthe Oval 
Office. 

Q What time was that, 9:45 or so? 

MR. HARTMANN: It was certainly before the 8:30 
meeting with the legislative leaders. 

Q He didn't get there until after 9. 

MR. HARTMANN: Pardon me, it was after the meeting 
broke up. I learned about it before that meeting, but when 
the meeting in the Cabinet Room broke up, the President went 
back and they were setting up the TV and all in the Oval 
Office and went into the small sitting room off the Oval 
Office and Governor Rockefeller was there, and Mrs. Ford. 
That was the first time the Governor was told flat out 
by the President. 

Q What time would that have been? 

Q 9:30? 

MR. HARTMAJIH: It wae shortly before 10, ten or 
15 minutes before 10. 

Q 
President. 

Well, they had time to call the former 

MR. HARTMANN: The President placed a call then to 
President Nixon in California and told him and then put the 
Governor on the phone, and he spoke also with President 
Nixon. 

Q Was that the first word President Nixon had 
gotten? 

MR. HARTMANN: To the best of my knowledge. 

Q 
White House? 

He hadn't been alerted by anyone else in the 

MR. HARTMANN: Not by me. 
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Q Was he consulted on the appointment? 

MR. HARTMANN: Not to my knowledge. 

Q Were there any other Governors on the list? 

MR. HARTMANN: How long a list are we talking 
about? 

Q How about the list of the three names to the 
FBI? 

MR. HARTMANN: We can play this game on the last 
three names until you know them. <'. 

Q Well, five know they weren't selected. Is 
there really any harm in saying who the six were now that 
it is over? 

MR. HARTMANN: You can ask the President that. 

Q You are not authorized to reveal it? 

MR. HARTMANN: I am not authorized to do it, and 
I would rather just go back a little now and tell you how 
this began. 

Q Are you specifically ordered not to reveal 
them by the President? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, I just understand that the 
President doesn't want it revealed right now. 

Q Could we put a question through Jerry to 
see, or maybe you, to specifically ask the President whether 
these names can be revealed at some point? 

MR. HARTMANN: Sure. Why don't you let me finish 
what I have to say? I don't want to get into the Press 
Secretary's role and, of course, you can put a question to 
the Press Secretary, but he was not present in my discussions 
with the President about this matter over the last few 
days, nor in my discussions with the President just recently 
about this briefing, so he can't answer those questions 
either right now until he has an opportunity to talk to 
the President. 

Before we have the questions, let me finish just 
a little play-by-play on this. 

When the President started upon this, which was 
one of the first things he did upon being swo~n in, as you 
know, he asked certain categories of people to submit to 
him by last Wednesday night their first, second and third 
choices in sealed enveloi;esand my personal secretary and 
I were given custody of those envelopes and he did not 
see them until Friday evening. 
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She tabulated these different categories and the 
first thing he asked to see were totals without the names 
of the nominator, but just by categories; that is to say, 
the Cabinet, the Republican Members of the Senate, the 
Republican Members of the House, Republican Governors, 
members of the Republican National Committee, and others. 

Q 
more time? 

Could you go through those categories one 

MR. HARTMANN: Members of the Cabinet and 
Counsellors, Republican Members of the Senate -- this is, 
incidentally, in no order of precedence -- Republican 
Members of the House, Republican Governors, members of 
the Republican National Committee and others, solicited 
and unsolicited. 

In addition to those categories, as you all 
know, he asked that certain Members of the Congress and 
others come in and talk with him about it and, as you 
know, on Sunday a week ago, I believe it was, there was 
quite a parade of people in here. 

He conferred with a number of leaders in the 
Congress. I don't have that complete list with me, and 
in addition to the Congressional people, it included Mel 
Laird and George Bush and Bryce Harlow. I guess that is 
all that were not Members of Congress. 

When he had seen the tabulations in these groups 
and the total tabulations, which of course were unweighted; 
that is to say, a great proportion and total number of votes 
came from either the House of Representatives or the 
National Committee, many fewer from Senators and many fewer 
from Governors. so the grand total was really kind of 
meaningless. 

You found that there was no one who led all the 
lists, but the Governors, as you might expect, would tend 
to have a Governor or former Governor as their favorite 
and the Senators · would lean heavily towards somebody who 
had a background in the Senate or was presently in the 
Senate. 

The House the same way, and the National Committee, 
of course, had an affinity for someone associated with the 
National Committee, so that it was much more meaningful 
for him to study the totals by group than it was a grand 
total. The grand total was more or less meaningless. 

Having done that, he continued to confer with 
people, sometimes in unscheduled private visits and some­
times here in the off ice or on the golf course or by the 
telephone. I canvt keep track of all the telephone calls, 
so don't try to ask me about who those were, except I do 
know that he did confer with the Speaker and Senator 
Mansfield and with Mr. Rhodes and Senator Scott. 

MORE 
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I guess Mr. Rhodes and Senator Scott were in to 
see him on that Sunday, but he did confer with the Democratic 
leaders of the House and Senate, the Speaker, Mr. O'Neill 
and Senator Mansfield. 

Q This was just this last Friday you are 
talking about, that he looked at the tabulations, just 
three days ago? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes. He really started to focus 
on this at that point, other than the earlier private 
talks that he had. 

From that point, the next step in the process 
was to ask the Director of the FBI to give him a fast check 
on certain names of those who were ·not elected Members of 
Congress, from which he got back a negative report. 

Q When? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yesterday. 

Q On all three? 

MR. HARTMANN: On all three. 

Q By negative report, I assume that means 
there was nothing bad in the report about them? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, there was nothing established 
to be derogatory. 

Q Did he also ask for an IRS report? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't believe he did so specifi­
cally, but that is part of the FBI report. 

Then yesterday, before taking off for Chicago, 
he asked his counsel, Mr. Buchen, to take a list of five 
names, or six, as I think I told those of you who were on the 
pool on the aircraft, to the Special Prosecutor to ascertain 
if the Special Prosecutor had any charges pending or any 
derogatory information against any of those names. 

Q When was that? 

MR. HARTMANN: Before we took off for Chicago 
yesterday, early in the morning, 8 o'clock, around there. 

After he returned, at 5 or 6 o'clock yesterday 
evening, Mr. Buchen reported back to the President that the 
Special Prosecutor had assured him that there was no 
derogatory information directed against any of those names. 
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Q Did you say that list was five or six that 
went to the Special Prosecutor? 

MR. HARTMANN: I believe it was five, but it 
could have been as many as six. 

Q What would be considered derogatory? 

MR. HARTMANN: If they had any charges against 
them. The Special Prosecutor part, Watergate-related 
charges. 

Q Had he eliminated at that point one of 
those under consideration if he sent only five? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't know. I can't answer 
that. 

Q She means the list, had it dropped from six 
to five? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, I am just unclear as to 
whether it was five or six that he sent over to the Special 
Prosecutor. 

Q In any event, these were the finalists. 

MR. HARTMANN: These were the ones he was going 
to pick one of them from, yes. 

Q Was there any ranking in the tabulations 
that made any sense that you could look at the tabulations 
and these were the five or six finalists? 

MR. HARTMANN: The tabulations did not necessarily 
conform -- well, first, let me say, his finalists were 
never ranked any. place but in his own head, as far as I 
know, but he was, yes, guided by the tabulations. But as 
you might imagine, Governor Rockefeller did not lead all 
the categories. 

There were those among the finalists who were 
rather low down in the numerical tabulations. 

Q Did he personally call these five or six to 
put to them the same questions that he put to Rockefeller 
on Saturday? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, sir, he did not. 

Q He called on Rockefeller? 

MORE 
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MR. HARTMANN: To the best of my knowledge he 
personally called only Rockefeller. 

Q Earlier you said he was asking Rocky the same 
questions he asked some of the others. 

MR. HARTMANN: He had talked to some of the others 
many times during his Presidency. 

Q Well, was his call to Rockefeller on 
Saturday caused by the story that was going around town? 

MR. HARTMANN: That was one of the reasons for 
the placing of the call, yes. It wasn't that he called 
him to tip him off that he had made a decision, because 
he hadn't at that point. 

Q And then having him on the phone he asked 
him certain questions? 

MR. HARTMANN: That is correct. 

Q Can you tell us what any of those questions 
were? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, I think you will have to direct 
those questions to the President. 

Q Bob, was Governor Rockefeller then the 
leading candidate on Saturday, not the only one, perhaps, 
but the only one that he felt necessary to talk to in 
person about it at that time? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, he was obviously one of 
those under consideration, and the story broke and the 
President talked to him. 

Q But the Saturday so-called smear story was 
the immediate reason for the call; is that what you 
are suggesting? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes. 

Q Out of that came the general questioning? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes, he asked him a bunch of other 
questions, too, which he would be expected to ask. 
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Q Bob, I am a little curious about the real 
reasons for all these tabulations and soliciting of a wide 
range of opinion since some finalists figured relatively low, 
but they were still finalists. Is this actually more of a 
way of letting the various Republican officials and those 
around the country and here in Washington feel they are being 
consulted? They don't appear to have been very significant. 

MR. HARTMANN: One, it gave him a feel for the 
reception which the candidate might receive in his confirmation 
when you looked at the Senators' choices and the Members of 
the House choices, and, two, he probably -- and here again I say 
I am not going to put myself inside his head -- but it certainly 
gave me, as I looked at them, an idea which candidates had 
some support in all elements of the party and which were 
limited to one or two elements. 

Q Could I follow that? If Governor Rockefeller 
did not lead in all categories, focusing on the Senate and 
the House, did he fare pretty well in each of those chambers 
and was there any kind of veto, you know, "Anybody but 
Rockefeller", recommendations out of that body? 

MR. HARTMANN: There were none in the form that was 
sent in on paper. Of course I can't speak as to the private 
conversations, whether they were both negative and positive. 

But I am sure that cut both ways with all the 
candidates. 

Q But we have been told by interviewing people 
on the Hill that he was not first in the House. Was he in 
the Senate? Did he rank up there at the top or very high? 

MR. HARTMANN: Let me say that he had solid support 
in all the categories. 

Q Bob, could you give us a brief summary of the 
criteria the President applied to his choice of Vice President? 

MR. HARTMANN: I think he answered that himself for 
you, Pete, when he said he would make a good President. 

Q Could you go into more detail, please? 

MR. HARTMANN: Again, I am not going to put myself 
in the President's head. He never laid down any specific 
criteria to me because he wasnvt asking me -- he did include me 
on his list, I guess of those he wanted to submit ballots, but 
I didn't submit one. I submitted a guess in a sealed envelope, 
and said this is not my choice but a guess. 
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Q Were you right? 

MR. HARTMANN: I won't tell. 

Q Was the overwhelming criterion then whether 
the man could step into the Presidency on a moment's notice? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes, sir; I am convinced that it was. Yot 
had better ask him again, but I am convinced it was. 

Q Let me ask another question in terms of the 
House and Senate. Did Rockefeller lead in the House, or did 
he definitely not lead in the House? Did he lead in the Senate 
or not lead in the Senate? 

MR. HARTMANN: If you can poll the Republican 
Members of the House on it, I suppose their opinions today might 
be a little different from their ballots and I wouldn't want 
to embarrass them. 

Q You are not going to say he actually led in the 
House or Senate? 

MR. HARTMANN: No I am not. 

Q Are you finished with the chronology on how 
he came to his decision? 

MR. HARTMANN: I have a couple of other things I 
want to add to the story. 

Q Can we stick for a minute on the meeting 
between Buchen and the Special Prosecutor's Office? Was 
that between Buchen and Jaworski? How long did they meet? 
Were there any negative reports from Jaworski on any of the 
people? 

MR. HARTMANN: There were no negative reports from 
Jaworski on any of the people. How long they met, I don't know. 
I was in Chicago. 

Q It was Jaworski? 

MR. HARTMANN: That was my understanding from Buchen. 

Q To follow up, if the President felt there was 
something wrong with the FBI investigating people who held 
legislative office, that this somehow violated separation of 
powers, why did he think contacting the Special Prosecutor didn't 
violate separation of powers? 

MR. HARTMANN: That is a good question. You know how 
sensitive Congress is to having the FBI in possession even of 
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information about them; and he knows that, and as long as the 
guy wasn't going to get the apple for sure, he wasn't going 
to do that until he had to. 

I can't answer the other part of your question. 
Maybe it was just one of those inconsistent situations 
which most of us sometimes fall into. The Special Prosecutor 
is a special case. He could not have made his final decision 
without clearing up this aspect of it because everyone of the 
finalists was a working member of the Republican Party for the 
last five and one-half years and you would all have jumped 
all over us, I am sure, if he hadntt done that. 

But he couldn't give the Special Prosecutor just one 
name, because that would announce his decision. 

Q Bob, could I follow up either question on the 
criteria. Some people at the White House had sort of spread 
the word that he was looking for a man who would be young 
enough to serve as Vice President for six years and then be 
in a position to run himself in 1980. Rockefeller would be 72 --

MR. HARTMANN: I think the President's decision 
answers that question, Ron. He was not looking for the 
survival of the Republican Party, but of the Republic if 
anything happens to him. 

Q Well, this raises a question, too. Does this 
mean he has plans to keep Rockefeller as Vice President for 
two years instead of six? 

MR. HARTMA:tlt: Your guess is as good as mine. 

Q Did he trade off his desire to have a younger 
man for other considerations? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't know, Ron, what went on in 
his head. I only know where it came out. I really don't know 
what went on in his head. I have done the same kind of specu­
lating in my own mind without any more information than I have 
now. 

Q Before we get away from it, I gather where we 
left it was that Rockefeller was the only one of the five or 
six, whatever it was, that he ever talked to personally? 

MR. HARTMANN: He wouldn't have talked to any of 
them, I am sure, if this matter hadn't come up. 

Q Why not? 

MR. HARTMANN: I mean at that stage of the game. 
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Q Did he ever talk to any of the others at any 
stage? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, as you know, he was talking 
to some of the others that were prominently mentioned fre­
quently. 

Q About other business, but what about this? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't know. I wasn't there. Maybe 
he asked them some leading questions about this matter, too. 
I don't know. 

Q You saw the totals. What was the total number 
of ballots that were submitted? 

MR. HARTMANN: It was in the neighborhood of 1,000. 

Q How many of those were Rockefeller? You can 
tell us that, can't you? 

MR. HARTMANN: Wait a minute; let me pull that back. 
When you added firsts, seconds and thirds, you had a total of 
about a thousand mentions of people. So it was 300 and some 
individuals heard from. 

Q In any category, within place and show? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes. 

Q How many mentioned Rockefeller within that 
thousand, Bob, roughly? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, Rockefeller was up at the top 
of the list when you did grand totals, yes. 

Q Up at the top or close to the top? 

MR. HARTMANN: Close to the top. 

Q Among these categories what was his average 
place? 

MR. HARTMANN: We have some statisticians here, but as 
I said, he didn't approach this in a statistical way and knowing 
that, I didn't fiddle with statistics. 

Q Let's go back to chronology. 

MR. HARTMANN: Last evening after he received the 
assurance of Mr. Buchen from Mr. Jaworski that there was 
nothing in the Special Prosecutor's files that affected any of 
these five or six people, he then at some point prior to 
Al Haig's call to Governor Rockefeller, made his decision. 
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Now I do not know what that . moment was. precise 

Q When did you last see him last night? 

MR. HARTMANN: You mean yesterday, when did I last 
see him? Is that what you mean? 

Q Yes. 

MR. HARTMANN: The last time I' saw him last night 
was at the reception he had over in the Residence for the old 
Vice Presidential Secret Service detail. 

Q Do you know to whom he communicated that 
decision? Did he call any Congressional leaders? Did he call 
anybody on it? 

MR. HARTMANN: The first communication of that 
decision other than this phone call from General Haig to 
Rockefeller, was, I believe, during the legislative leaders' 
meeting this morning when he informed the bipartisan leadership. 

Q Did he tell General Haig why he wanted to 
see Rockefeller? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't know that, but General Haig 
is a pretty smart fellow and I imagine he got the point. 

Q You said at the beginning of this that General 
Haig told him to be down here this morning? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, I don't know if he put it 
exactly that way. The President would like to see him at 
10:30 or something like that. 

Q Wasn't there some point when Governor Rockefeller 
accepted? 

MR. HARTMANN: Yes, that must have been about five 
minutes before we went into the room. 

Q You mean he was called down here without the 
assurance that he would accept? 

MR. HARTMANN: I assume that he got that assurance in 
that Saturday call, but I am assuming that; I don't know. 

Q But you are saying to your knowledge Haig did 
not tell Rockefeller last night over the phone? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't know. I haven't talked to 
General Haig about this call. All I got was from the President 
that he asked General Haig to do this. 
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Q Can you find out, Bob, a kind of key point 
here that we don't have? Were there actually six names 
sent to the Special Prosecutor? 

MR. HARTMANN: Does it really make a difference? 

Q Yes. 

Q Did General Haig suggest that the Governor 
bring his wife? 

MR. HARTMANN: His wife was invited and she was unable 
to get ready in time, I guess, to get down here that fast. 

Q Can you tell us the exact way the President 
told Rockefeller the word? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, I really can't. David Kennerly 
was in my way snapping pictures. (Laughter.) 

Q Do you have any more on the chronology? 

MR. HARTMANN: I have one more rather important 
announcement, I think. This morning just before he brought 
Governor Rockefeller into the Oval Office, in fact while 
Governor Rockefeller was talking to former President Nixon, 
the President called George Bush from another telephone in my 
office and told him of his decision. 

As Chairman of the Party and so forth, he was entitled 
to a little advance notice. 

Q Did he also call Rumsfeld? 

MR. HARTMANN: Ambassador Rumsfeld was in the room 
with the rest of the Cabinet and White House staff that he told 
after telling the bipartisan leadership and before bringing the 
Governor into the Roosevelt Room. 

Q What was the look on Rumsfeld's face when he told 
him? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, I wasn't exactly looking at him at 
the time but he seemed to be very happy about the whole thing 
afterwards. 

Q What dig he tell Bush and what did Bush r~ply? 

MR. HARTMANN: I only heard half of his end of the 
conversation and I haven't seen George. 
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Q What did he say to Bush? 

MR. HARTMANN: He just said he had made his deciaion 
and told him what it was and said it was a very tough decision, 
and he thought it was best for the country, and I don't know 
what was said. 

Q Did the President talk with Dr. Kissinger about 
this on a one-on-one basis and to what extent was the foreign 
policy consideration a factor in this choice? 

MR. HARTMANN: I think that is a question you will 
have to ask Dr. Kissinger or the President. Dr. Kissinger was 
present in the Cabinet room, and he had been with the President 
before the President met with Governor Rockefeller. 
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Q My question was, did he talk to Dr. 
Kissinger in advance of making his choice? 

MR. HARTMANN: He has been talking to Dr. 
Kissinger four or five times a day. 

Q On this subject? 

MR. HARTMANN: About this subject, I do not 
know. He asked all of the Cabinet to give him their 
views, and I am sure they all did, but mostly by word of 
mouth. 

Q When he talked to Rockefeller on the phone on 
Saturday, he put to him questions about the smear, but 
presumably other questions about potential embarrassment, 
you know~ what we have come to call, if you like, Eagleton 
questions. Were any similar questions asked of any of 
these other candidates, direct questions about whether 
there was anything embarrassing in their background, 
giving them the impression they might be under consideration? 

MR. HARTMANN: Not to my knowledge, but he has 
talked to some of the other candidates so frequently that 
I don't know. 

Q Bob, at the other end of the process, this 
chronology, when did he start thinking about a Vice 
President'? 

MR. HARTMANN: As soon as he got over the shock 
of being President. He mentioned the matter the first 
day, I believe, in one way or another. 

Q How did he mention it? 

MR. HARTMANN: He said it was one of the first 
things he was going to do, and he was going to try to do it 
that first week. But as you know, he didn't get it done 
that first week. 

Q Did you ever hear him talk about it before 
he became President? 

MR. HARTMANN: No. 

Q Did Cyprus sidetrack him to any extent 
from this search? 

MR. HARTMANN: That was one of the things that 
crowded up the time in the past week. As you know, there 
were many others. 
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Q Did the Long report, this statement by 
Long about Rockefeller, did that have an effect in delaying 
it until today? 

MR. HARTMANN: I don't think that contributed 
any appreciable delay. The check out by the Special 
Prosecutor was done rather speedily. 

Q It was more Cyprus that delayed it than 
lies? It was supposed to be a week or ten days. 

MR. HARTMANN: Cyprus chewed up an awful lot of 
his time this past week. 

Q Bob, maybe you answered this question, but 
I want to ask it again. The same questions that he asked 
Rockefeller on Saturday, didheask any other man these 
same questions? 

MR. HARTMANN: The answer is, not to my knowledge. 
He told me of asking some questions of Rockefeller during 
that Saturday talk. He did not tell me, nor has anyone 
else told me, that he had asked any other questions. 

Q In connection with that, has the President 
talked to Mr. Rockefeller either on Saturday, or anytime 
since, about the role he envisions for Rockefeller as Vice 
President in his Administration? Perhaps that is one of 
the subjects that was discussed on Saturday or maybe this 
morning. Do you know anything about it? 

MR. HARTMANN: No, I think that is a bridge to 
be crossed when and if Governor Rockefeller is confirmed 
and meanwhile, we have a lot of other things to do and 
worry about. 

Q Governor Rockefeller said they did talk 
about it, but not in any detail. 

MR. HARTMANN: That is right. I mean, you know, 
I want to be all the help I can to you. 

Q Since the criterion was fitness or quali-
fication to step in and be President, do we have here a 
situation where in effect these other men were being 
measured against Rockefeller's seniority and depth 
experience? 

MR. HARTMANN: If so, it was inside his head, and 
I can't speak to that. 

Let me go back to your question about the role 
he would play as Vice President. Before that happens, of 
course, he has to run a very difficult gauntlet, which 
nobody in the world knows better than the President and 
about a half dozen or dozen people who assisted the 
President when he was a Member of Congress in getting 
through the first test of the Twenty-fifth Amendment 
route to becoming a Vice President. 
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Knowing that this is only the second time this 
process has occurred under the Constitution and that he 
and a handful of his friends and staff were the sole 
possessors of the guidelines for this process from the 
nominee's point of view, the President, when he met with 
the Governor after the announcement, offered him the 
services of all of those of his staff, including me and 
the others who were with him during the hearings, to assist 
him in preparing for these hearings to the extent 
that we can. 

Now, specifically, he assigned Richard T. Burress, 
who has been Assistant to the Vice President during the 
past eight months in charge of our legislative liaison, to 
be the liaison man between the White House and Governor 
Rockefeller and his staff on the preparation for the 
hearings simply so that he can make available what we know 
about going this route. 

Q That doesn't include Cramer; does it? 

MR. HARTMANN: Well, Bill Cramer isn't a member. 
We can't direct what Bill Cramer does. The Governor is 
aware and if he wants Bill Cramer's advice, I am sure Bill 
will be glad to give it to him. 

Q Bob, does the 
role for the Vice President? 
will be in charge of certain 
getting entirely specific? 

President envision a substantive 
Does he expect that he 

parts of the Government without 

MR. HARTMANN: We haven't talked about that, but 
you go back and read what he said his vision of the Vice 
Presidency was, and I suppose it hasn't changed very 
much. 

Q In connection with the Congressional 
hearings, President Ford, when he was there, made available 
to the committee a complete financial statement. Do you 
expect that Governor Rockefeller will do the same thing, 
make a complete statement of his net worth? 

MR. HARTMANN: That is up to Governor Rockefeller 
and the committee. 

Q Does the President have any thoughts about 
whether this should be done? 

MR. HARTMANN: The President has already indicated 
what he thinks should be done by what he did. 

THE PRESS: Thank you, sir. 

END CAT 2:55 P.H. EDT) 



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE AUGUST 20, 1974 

OFFICE OF THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS SECRETARY 

10:09 A.M. EDT 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

REMARKS BY 
NELSON ROCKEFELLER 

VICE PRESIDENT-DESIGNATE 

THE OVAL OFFICE 

GOVERNOR ROCKEFELLER: Mr. President, Mr. Speaker 
and leaders of the Congress, Mr. Secretary of State and 
Members of the Cabinet, and friends: 

Mr. President, your nomination of me to be Vice 
President of the United States under the 25th Amendment of 
the Constitution makes me very humble. If I am confirmed, it 
will be my great honor to serve you and through you to serve 
all of the people of this great country. 

As you pointed out in your moving message to the 
Congress, these are very serious times. They are times, as 
you pointed out, that require the closest cooperation between 
the Congress of the United States and the Executive Branch of 
Government. They also require the dedication of every 
American to our common national interest. 

You, Mr. President, through youp dedication·and your· 
openn~ss have already reawakened faith and hope,and under, your 
leadership we, as a people, and we as a nation have the will, 
the determination and the capability to overcome the hard 
realities of our times. I am optimistic about the long-term 
future. 

Thank you, Sir. 

END (10:11 A.M. EDT) 



August Z2, 1974 

Dear Mra. Purcell: 

Mr. Buchen wanted you to bow that he did indeed 
receive aDcl appreciate yov l•tter and observations. 

We In his of8ee re rejoicing with you bout the 
sident'• nominatloa of Nel.oa ockefeller. 

ith all good wishes to you. 

Moat Sincerely, 

a. E• Daughtr y 
cretary to Mr. Bue hen 

s. Mary A. Parcell 
1'64 Rhode klaad Avenue, N. W. 

aahington, D. C. 20005 



Augut zz. 1974 

Dear Mra. Purcell: 

Mr. Buch .. wanted yoa to kaew that he did lncleed 
rec9lye and appreciate you letter alld obaerw.tlan9. 

We In bla offlce are rejoic:lD.g with yoa about the 
Prealdeat'• aomlDatlon ol Neboa Rockefeller. 

ith all cood wl•hea to yo ... 

Moat Sincerely. 

Mra. Eva D&u&htrey 
Secretary to Mr. hea 

Ma. Mary A. Purcell 
146<& Rhode lalaad Anaue. N. w. 
N'aahlnatc:m. D. C. 20005 
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THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

8/30/74 
10: 50 a. m. 

Dick Burress said he 
was to pick up a file 
on Rockefeller. 

Having had no instructions, 
I gave him our file of letters 
but held out the attached until 
I could check with you. 

We also have some material 
in the Vice President file 
see attached. 

Do youwant any of that to go 

to Dick Burress? 
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THE WHITE. HO'CSE 

WASH!"IGTO"i 

September 3, 1974 

MEMORANDUM FOR : PHIL BUCHEN 

FROM: 

SUBJECT 

Attached is a letter from Director Kelley of the FBI 
detailing the initial investigation of Nelson Rockefeller 
for .Vice President of the United States. His investiga­
tion to date is contained in four voltunes and covers 
interviews with over 1, 250 people from all walks of 
life. 

I am forwarding them to you for appropriate scrutiny 
and action. 

Attachments 




